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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Franklin Corners is a small farming a il11i i
dates from approximately 1770 to 1850. g and milling hamlet whicl
Ridge, along the Paseaic River at the imterseesion o Chijae 2
Road and Route 202, ' criom e 1lds

The land was originally purchased by William Penn in 1717
and sold to John Budd in 1718, Budd's widow, Sarah Budd Scott
sold the land in the middle of the 18th century to the farmers’
and millers who settled the area prior to the Revolution. - . The
Brees, Johnson, Lewis and Southard families were among the
earliest inhabitants. Of these only the Samuel Johnson House
still stands. "
Generally, most-structures .date from the 1st and 2nd quar-
ters of the 19th century when there were 2 mills, a school, a
general store, and several farms at Franklin Corners. All of
the commercial buildings still exist. Diaries and documents
indicate that during the 19th century this village was a bustling
agricultural community centered around two small one-family
industries -- a grist mill and a saw mill.

Select buildings are herein described:
1 Van Dorn's Mill (Carl Ferenbach), Route 202 and Childs

Road, 1842-43. Built on or near the site of an earliey

mill (1768). 3 1/2 story random fieldstone with cut

cornerstones. Outstanding example of mid-19th century

stone masonry. Windows are 6/6 with trapazoidal key-

stones. Gambrel roof. Originally an undershot mill,

_but converted to turbines late in the 19th century.

At about the same time the mill stones were replaced

with rollers. Much of the 19th century mill machinery

remains. Exterior unaltered. Building is vacant and
beginning to deteriorate. :

CONDITION

2 Ferdinand Van Dorn House (Lewis Robertson), Childs Road,
2nd quarter 19th century. Greek Revival style 2 1/2
story clapboard rectangular structure. Gambrel roof
with intersecting triangular dormer. Paired gable end
chimneys. Five bays, center entrance. First § second
floor windows are 9/6 sash with louvered shutters except
for the first floor windows east of the door which are
full length. Stone foundation. Full cellar with a
basement kitchen. Small brick outbuilding and a moder:

garage on the property

=

3 van Dorn House (J. A. Ziebarth), Childs Road, 19th
century, extensively altered. Conglomerate dwelling
with many alterations and additions. Original unit
appears to be rectangular 2 1/2 story c}apboard struc-
ture with a gable roof and gable end chimneys.
Probably originally 5 bay, center halls. Stone foun-
dation nearly every facade has been altered and added

on to.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Franklin Corners represents a way of life in the first hal?®
of the 19th century before New Jersey was heavily influenced by
the Industrial Era. This small, nearly self-sufficient village,
boasted of a saw mill, a grist mill, a general store, a school,
and several houses in the 19th century.

Farmers surrounding the area travelled to the village for
sawn timbers, to have their grain milled, and, perhaps to buy
the latest manufactured goods from the small general store. The
village, consequently, was a center of commerce for the Township|

The area comprising Franklin Corners had been settled some
time prior to the American Revolution. The Brees, Johnson, Lewis
and Southard families were the first settlers. Of these first
families, however, only the Johnson House remains, as the others
were variously destroyed.

Industry: :

The first mill, on or near the present Van Dorn Mill, was
built in 1768 by Samuel Lewis. It was from this mill that the
Continental Army was provided with grain during the encampment
at nearby Jockey Hollow in the winter of 1779.

This mill was probably operated by Samuel Woodward and
owned by Richard Southard in the early 19th century.

Ferdinand Van Dorn bought the Southard place in 1842 and
proceeded to build the present mill. This new grist mill was
said to have been the finest flouring-mill in Somerset County
and from its size and appearance the statement was probably
not far from the truth. Van Dorn apparently designed the mill
himself and selected a location which would provide the most
efficient water power. The mill originally was fitted with
three runs of stone which were replaced in 1893 by roller-type
equipment. This modernization coupled with the installation of
3 turbines in the late 1880's laid the basis for a more productiye
mill operation. The mill operated until 1941 and much of the
19th century mill equipment is still intact.

The saw mill, which was originally constructed in 1828 by
Samuel McMurtry and re-tooled around 1850 by his .son Abnah,
remained in the McMurtry family for nearly one hundred years.
Until a generation ago the mill, with its vertical "up.and down'|
saw was nearly completely intact and an excellent indication of
early 19th century sawing techniques. Presently a private home,

only the original form of the mill exists as an indication of
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7. Description (cont'd.)

5 Joab Johnson House/William Gordon's General Store
(Charles Allen), Childs and Hardscrabble Road, ca.
1805, 1850. Built by Joab Johnson. Two story clap-
board dwelling with 1 1/2 story wing on east gable
end. Main unit is 3 bay, side entrance. Windows are
6/6 sash with batten board shutters. Gable roof with
modern outside chimney. Smaller unit has 2 bays and
a gable roof with a modern dormer. Functions as
general store ca. 1832-1850. Modern double garage
in basement.

7 Samuel Johnson House. (Harry Ottinger, Jr.), Childs
Road, ca. 1770. Oldest house in the district. Main
unit is a 1 1/2 story rectangular clapboard building.
Five bays with a center through hall. Windows are
6/6 sash with batten board shutters. Modern porch
over center three bays. Gable roof with two shed
dormers. Gable end chimneys. Smaller wing may be
of a later date. This small rectangular unit is also
1 1/2 stories, clapboard, and a gable roof with a
center shed dormer. Gable end chimney. The front
facade of this unit is obstructed by a semi-enclosed
leanto porch. Modern garage attached.

11 Schoolhouse (Richard Sanford), Childs Road, 1832.
Single 2 story Greek Revival style clapboard building.
Twenty by fortY§ foot brace frame. Three bay, side
entrance on the gable end. Windows are 6/6 sash.
Second floor windows on the gable end may have been
added in the 20th century when building was converted
into a private residence. Corner pilasters and a
simple entablature below the eave. Numerous additions

in the rear.

9 McMurtry Sawmill (Robert F. Lewis), Hardscrabble Road,
ca. 1827, 1850, altered. Two and 1/2 story vertical
board structure with land hewn timber frame. Stone
foundation. Vertical saw mounted over fireplace.
Between 1941 and 1962 this saw mill was converted into
a private residence and much of the 19th century
milling equipment as noted by Historic American
Buildings Survey was removed during the remodeling.
Exterior changes include the removal of large double

GPO 921.724
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7. Description (cont'd.)

sliding doors, the addition of exterior chimneys and
modern window placements,

10 McMurtry Fouse (John Nooney), Hardscrabble Road,
opposite sawmill, 18th century. 1 1/2 story clapboard
building. 5 bay, center hall. Windows are 9/6 sash
on first floor. Attic windows, on gable and are 6/6
Gable roof with three dormers and gable and chimneys.
Full length early 20th century porch on front facade
which disguises age. Stone foundation. Modern garage
at the eastern end of the property.

The Franklin Corners district is approximately 50 acres and
contains 10 private residence and the vacant grist mill. Of these
eleven structures two are 18th century, six are 19th century, and
three are modern encroachments. Two of these were apparently
constructed in the 1930's using timbers of old nearby barns.
Much of the district, especially along Hardscrabble Road,
is undeveloped land covered with forest and dense undergrowth.
Furthermore, the district is adjacent to a nature study area
and that area abutts up against Jockey Hollow, which is part of
the Morristown National Historic Park.

The modern buildings are as follows:

U, Loysen House (Hilda Loysen), Hardscrabble and Childs Roads,
1930's, Built around the frame of an old barn, Two dwelling
units and an attached garage. Main unit is 2% stories while
smaller section is 1% stories with eyebrow windows, Clapboard
with gable roof.

6 Wallace Childs House (R. Crump), Childs Road, Built in the
1930's in the colonial revival style by the nephew of
millionaire restauranteur willam Childs, Jr, Part of the
was originally the frame of an old barn. The property is the
site of another early 19th century barn built by Job Johnson.

8 House and Garage, (M. Gallagher), Hardscrabble Road, Early 20th
century. Frame building with a small garage dependency. Said
to have been a 19th century schoolhouse, but there is no surface
evidence of any 19th century characteristics,

GPO 921.724
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Education:

Franklin Corners, small as it was, had citizens prosperous
enough in the 2nd quarter of the 19th century to build their own
This small school was private and required tuition from
parents in order that their children might attend. The school
was called Franklin Academy and functioned as an educational
facility until the early 20th century.

(Number all entries)

Franklin Corners Historic District
Bernards Township

Somerset County

New Jersey

8. Significance (cont'd.)

the structures former use.

William Childs, life-long resident of Somerset County
and noted restauranteur, hoped to create what he termed
an historic town around the nucleus of Franklin Corners
in the 1930's. The preliminary plans actually called
for the construction of a housing development which
would encircle the village. Although a few buildings
were constructed, the project never completely
materialized as Childs died in 1938.

Consequently, Franklin Corners remains relatively
unobstructed by modern development and has maintained
a 19th century atmosphere up to the present day.

GPO 921.724
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2. Location (cont.)
Verbal Nescription

Beginning at the intersection of Route 202 (Mt.
Kemble Avenue) and Childs Road, proceed north on Poute
202 to the Harding-Bernards Township border at the
Passaic River. Thence, proceed west along the main
branch of the river to the bend at Hardscrabble Road,
directly opposite Lakeside Slope Road (now closed).
Thence, proceed north approximately 300 feet along
the township boundary to the projected property line
of J. Nooney (#25) and © & J Apgar (#24). Thence,
proceed west along the Nooney property 370', southwest
147", south-southwest 254' and east 295'. Thence,
proceed 476 feet south to Lakeside Slope. Thence,
proceed easterly parallel to Hardscrabble Poad
(approximately 500 feet away) to the back property
line on the north side of Childs Road. Thence,
proceed southwest along the Ottinger property 215
feet. Thence, proceed southeast along Childs Road
to the property line dividing E. Sandford and D. Carr.
Thence, proceed south 371 feet, east 136 feet, north
220 feet, east 137 feet, and north 152 feet to Childs
Road. Thence, proceed along Childs Road to the point
of beginning.
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